
City Council Budget Workshop – July 24, 2013 
Page 1 
 
  
 

 1

CITY OF TAVARES 1 
CITY COUNCIL BUDGET WORKSHOP 2 

MINUTES  3 
JULY 24, 2013 4 

CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS 5 
 6 

COUNCILMEMBERS PRESENT     ABSENT 7 
 8 

Robert Wolfe, Mayor         9 
Kirby Smith, Vice Mayor       10 
Bob Grenier, Councilmember 11 
Norman Hope, Councilmember 12 
Lori Pfister, Councilmember 13 
  14 
STAFF PRESENT 15 
 16 
John Drury, City Administrator 17 
Nancy Barnett, City Clerk 18 
Lori Houghton, Finance Director 19 
Richard Keith, Fire Chief 20 
Bill Neron, Director of Economic Development 21 
Chris Thompson, Director of Public Works 22 
Brad Hayes, Director of Utilities 23 
Stoney Lubins, Police Chief 24 
Jacques Skutt, Director of Community Development 25 
Tammey Rogers, Director of Community Services 26 
 27 
I  CALL TO ORDER 28 
 29 
Mayor Wolfe called the meeting to order at 4:00 p.m.  30 
 31 
II. CONTINUED DISCUSSION ON FY 2014 Budget  32 
 33 
City Administrator Presentation 34 
 35 
Mr. Drury summarized that staff has provided to Council the general fund, the enterprise funds, 36 
the special revenue funds, the capital program, Council has had good discussions, debate and 37 
has taken action on some items. He stated the Finance Director, the City Clerk and he had 38 
taken notes and will continue to do so as Council’s changes are incorporated into the budget. 39 
 40 
Mr. Drury said he would like to summarize the budget adjustments staff is making, provide 41 
answers to some of the questions made by Council, and then would like to bring back some of 42 
the items that need resolution. He said after he has made that presentation he will turn back the 43 
meeting to Council to discuss the flagged items.  44 



City Council Budget Workshop – July 24, 2013 
Page 2 
 
  
 

 2

Mr. Drury then noted he had provided a document entitled “Budget Cleanup Items Fiscal Year 1 
2014.” 2 
 3 
Budget Adjustments 4 
 5 

1. Separating the reserves into a 90% emergency fund and 10% contingency fund – done. 6 
The emergency fund will have $1,060,124 in it; the contingency fund has $117,792. This 7 
represents about 8.9% of the current budget. 8 

2. Legal fees for the Stark property were removed. $20,000 savings. 9 
3. Fire overtime budget has been reduced from $130,000 down to $100,000 - $30,000 10 

savings – with close management the savings should be realized. 11 
4. Clarifying notations for capital lease programs – done. 12 
5. Administrator’s budget – regular salaries needed to be reduced to a 2% increase 13 
6. Pavilion budget changed to reflect partial year funding – overtime has been reduced. 14 

First employee will not be hired until January 1. Second and third employees would be 15 
hired in April. At the next Council Meeting, Tammy Rogers will go over the grand 16 
opening event. Right now the number is in as a placeholder ($37,500). 17 

7. Police Department will pay for its boat slips ($3,258) and the Fire Department will pay for 18 
its boat slip ($2,178). 19 

 20 
Budget Questions: 21 
 22 

1. Millage rate calculation sheet has been provided. Mr. Drury noted that one mil provides 23 
$587,965. ½ mil provides $293,983; ¼ mil provides $146,000, etc. 24 

2. The total estimated budget currently that is balanced is $3,814,199 which is at 6.48 mils. 25 
The maximum tentative millage rate that was voted on is $4,106,397. 26 

3. The Jacobsen spelling number has been changed to Jacobsen model. The Tora Model 27 
was what had been requested. A budget cut was done to a different product. That was 28 
changed to the proper model LF510. The price remains unchanged at $40,000 in the 29 
current budget. 30 

4. Wastewater Treatment Plant irrigation system coverage acreage - Brad Hayes.stated it 31 
is 9.62 acres. 32 

5. Fire Assessment for not for profits to be provided. Ms. Houghton is calculating that 33 
based on the updated information. At the next budget the not for profit dollars both at 34 
100%, 50% that would be provided to the General Fund will be provided. Currently not 35 
for profits pay zero. 36 

6. Flag Pole donation fund balance is $21,696.04. 37 
7. Maximum tentative millage rate date due to the property appraiser. The rate is due July 38 

31st however this is the last scheduled budget workshop prior to that date. 39 
8. When will staff have all the revenue numbers from the state and the health care plan 40 

numbers? Staff has the final revenue numbers from the state; some went up and some 41 
went down but overall there was a reduction is revenues of $39,236 which will be 42 
reflected in the budget. Staff does not anticipate an increase in the health care cost 43 
premiums. 44 



City Council Budget Workshop – July 24, 2013 
Page 3 
 
  
 

 3

9. Property acquisition – description of two properties identified to be acquired. One is on 1 
the east side of 509 Lake Dora Drive (vacant land) to relocate the well from Disston in 2 
the future relating to the eventual plans for parking garage. The other is the Caroline 3 
plant which has $30,000 budgeted. Progress Energy bought property to put a substation 4 
at the location which was never done. The city then ended up using the property. Duke 5 
Energy [previously Project Energy] wants to sell the property and the City wishes to 6 
purchase the property. This will come from the Utility Fund. 7 

10. Request to change power point to reflect yard waste pick up of once a week instead of 8 
twice a week – done 9 

11. Explanation of stormwater fee of .75 per ERU from $5.50 to $6.25. Ms. Houghton has 10 
put an explanation in the budget book. 11 

12. Bids for seaplane painting at the splash Park (the mock airplane). This has not been bid 12 
out yet. The purchasing manager believes when the specs are done it will be close to 13 
$5,000 so this has been left at $5,000 for now. 14 

13. Confirm that the Splash Park attendants were budgeted at $9.00 per hour and that the 15 
same rate would apply next year. No increase. 16 

14. The train station staining budget has been changed to reflect that it is the train platform 17 
not the train station because the station was just done. 18 

 19 
Flagged Items 20 
 21 

1. The Shuffleboard courts were flagged for resurfacing. They are not in the budget at this 22 
time. They are estimated to cost $16,190. They were last resurfaced in 2006 at a cost of 23 
$12,984. 24 

2. Splash Park fee revenues are scheduled to be at $3.00. The resident’s annual pass 25 
remains budgeted at the same as the current year which is $15,000 for the season. 26 

3. Health care access for council members was flagged. 27 
 28 
Notes to think about 29 
 30 

1. The Council voted to set the tentative maximum millage rate at 6.9850 which is one mil 31 
above the current rate of 5.9850. 32 

2. The changes noted above reflect a balanced general fund budget of $13,428,319 at a 33 
millage rate of 6.4810 mils which is a .4960 millage increase. The budget that has been 34 
revised is currently at a millage rate of 6.4810 which is less than a half a mil increase. 35 

3. The tentative maximum millage rate of 6.9850 provides additional revenue of $292,738 36 
above the proposed budget currently. 37 

4. The Police Union and Fire Union contracts are under negotiations and should be 38 
completed for a recommendation at the next Council meeting in August. 39 

 40 
Mayor Wolfe said after he had reviewed the adjustments being saved it came to $55,000 so he 41 
asked for confirmation that the .4960 millage increase did not include those savings. 42 
 43 



City Council Budget Workshop – July 24, 2013 
Page 4 
 
  
 

 4

Mr. Drury said it may have not included the decreased revenues. The total would then come to 1 
$16,000 difference but it is still close to a balanced budget. 2 
 3 
Councilmember Grenier asked about the canal off Rockingham. Mr. Drury said that is a current 4 
year item that needs to be repaired this year. Mr. Hayes said he is working on proposals and 5 
pricing.  6 
 7 
Councilmember Pfister said she felt it is important to approve the $16,190 to resurface the 8 
shuffleboard courts. She said the courts are used frequently and the city does not have a lot of 9 
elder services. 10 
 11 
Discussion followed on the proposal noting that the resurfacing would be good for seven years.  12 
 13 
Ms. Rogers said the shuffleboard club locks the courts for their own private use. They are not 14 
open to the public. She said the City also provides free rental space to the club in the TRA room 15 
and the city also pays for some supplies. 16 
 17 
Discussion followed on the club being open to the public. Ms. Rogers noted the club runs the 18 
tournaments and provides the services and does an excellent job helping to maintain the area. 19 
She said there is a concern that if the courts are opened they might be vulnerable to misuse. 20 
 21 
Councilmember Pfister asked if staff receives calls from the public complaining. Ms. Rogers said 22 
she has probably only received two calls in the past. 23 
 24 
Mayor Wolfe asked if the group pays any funds to the city for any use. Ms. Rogers said they 25 
provide some maintenance and cleaning assistance. 26 
 27 
Mayor Wolfe noted that the person who spoke at the previous council meeting had indicated 28 
they would be happy if half of the courts were done. 29 
 30 
Vice Mayor Smith expressed concern regarding the membership issue. He asked the criteria for 31 
membership. Ms. Rogers said they charge $5.00 a year and she discussed how the dues are 32 
spent. Vice Mayor Smith said he wanted to ensure there are no restrictions on membership. Ms. 33 
Rogers said there are no restrictions and the club welcomes participation.  34 
 35 
Mr. Drury said he believed that if anyone from the public wants to reserve the shuffleboard 36 
courts that can be done through the recreation department. Vice Mayor Smith asked if the club 37 
would object to having a sign hung at the courts indicating that the public can make reservations 38 
by contacting the Recreation Department. Ms. Rogers said that should be no problem and the 39 
staff can advise anyone wishing to use the courts on the use of the equipment and the courts 40 
 41 
Mr. Drury said he would be including the resurfacing in the next budget update. 42 
 43 
Councilmember Pfister said she had an additional item to bring up after the flagged items. 44 



City Council Budget Workshop – July 24, 2013 
Page 5 
 
  
 

 5

 1 
Councilmember Grenier asked for confirmation that no changes have been made to the budget 2 
with regard to the upgrades on the pavilion. Ms. Rogers confirmed. 3 
 4 
Mayor Wolfe noted the boat slips payment does not reduce the overall budget. Mr. Drury said 5 
that is correct; it just accurately reflects the line item in the budget and in the event a Golden 6 
Triangle Fire District is created those costs will be transferred over.  7 
 8 
Councilmember Health Insurance 9 
 10 
Vice Mayor Smith asked Council to reflect the issue of councilmember health insurance. He said 11 
he does not support health insurance for city councilmembers because of the citizens who do 12 
not have health care. 13 
 14 
Discussion followed on health insurance for councilmembers. Vice Mayor Smith said he would 15 
support it if this matter was put on the ballot as a referendum.  16 
 17 
Councilmember Hope asked about the cost to put this matter on the election ballot. Mayor Wolfe 18 
noted since it is an odd year he understood the cost of having an election is at least $10,000. 19 
Ms. Barnett concurred and said she believed she had $12,000 budgeted for a stand alone for 20 
the odd year election. 21 
 22 
Mayor Wolfe asked if Council wished to make a motion. Mr. Drury said the question is whether 23 
or not to put it in the budget and whether to hold a referendum. He said in order to accurately 24 
insure the voter is informed it requires funds for educating the public in addition to the costs of 25 
the election. 26 
 27 
MOTION 28 
 29 
Lori Pfister moved to leave the insurance in the budget and offer it to councilmembers 30 
just as employees, seconded by Bob Grenier. 31 
 32 
Vice Mayor Smith asked that Council consider adding this as a referendum next year since it is 33 
an even year election and that would give time to prepare the language. 34 
 35 
Discussion followed on various issues concerned with serving the public and the public benefit. 36 
 37 
Lori Pfister said she wished to amend her motion to add “and that health insurance be 38 
offered to councilmembers only after two full years of service on the Council”. The 39 
amendment was seconded by Bob Grenier. 40 
 41 
Councilmember Grenier asked if a decision had to be made at this meeting noting that he would 42 
like more time to consider the issues that had been discussed. 43 
 44 



City Council Budget Workshop – July 24, 2013 
Page 6 
 
  
 

 6

Councilmember Hope agreed stating he would prefer to have some more time to consider this 1 
at a future meeting. 2 
 3 
Lori Pfister withdrew her motion as amended seconded by Bob Grenier. 4 
 5 
Splash Park Fees 6 
 7 
Councilmember Hope asked for discussion on the increase in the Splash Park fees from $2.00 8 
to $3.00. 9 
 10 
Mayor Wolfe, Councilmember Pfister and Councilmember Hope said they were opposed to the 11 
increase. 12 
 13 
Vice Mayor Smith said he was in support noting the annual pass cost to the Tavares citizens 14 
has not changed. He noted the groups that come from the schools to use the parks, don’t utilize 15 
the restaurants and the price has not been raised in five years, whereas the chlorine costs have 16 
gone up, the electric costs, maintenance and upkeep have gone up. 17 
 18 
Mayor Wolfe noted other areas have gone up however the millage is not being raised. Vice 19 
Mayor Smith noted the use of the Splash Park is a choice. 20 
 21 
Councilmember Pfister said the project was done as a service to the community. Mr. Drury 22 
stated the decision to charge a fee was to try to offset some of the costs. 23 
 24 
MOTION 25 
 26 
Lori Pfister moved to leave the Splash Park fees at $2.00, seconded by Bob Grenier.  27 
 28 
Mayor Wolfe noted he hears a lot of feedback from the public from people who come to use the 29 
Splash Park and then are drawn back in the future for other events and activities. 30 
 31 
Vice Mayor Smith asked that Council be given information as to the percentage of increase on 32 
chemicals and cost to run the splash park compared to when it started and how that relates to 33 
the fee. Mr. Drury said he could bring back that information.  34 
 35 
Vice Mayor Smith asked Councilmember Pfister if she was willing to withdraw her motion. 36 
Councilmember Pfister indicated she did not want to withdraw the motion. 37 
 38 
Vice Mayor Smith said he recommended that the motion be voted down and said in the future 39 
he would bring back the motion when all the facts are known. 40 
 41 
The motion carried 3-2 as follows: 42 
 43 
Lori Pfister    Yes 44 



City Council Budget Workshop – July 24, 2013 
Page 7 
 
  
 

 7

Bob Grenier    Yes 1 
Norman Hope   Yes 2 
Kirby Smith    No 3 
Robert Wolfe    No 4 
 5 
Mayor Wolfe invited public comment on the budget. 6 
 7 
Charlotte Hope 8 
 9 
Ms. Hope said corporate America often allows employees to opt out of their health insurance 10 
plan and the people who opt out get the difference that the other people have in their paycheck. 11 
 12 
Vice Mayor Smith said he wanted to clarify that none of the decisions made by Council are 13 
directed at anyone personally and are done for the good of the citizens. 14 
 15 
Adjournment 16 
 17 
There was no further business and the meeting was adjourned at 5:33 p.m. 18 
 19 
Respectfully submitted, 20 
 21 
 22 
___________________________ 23 
Nancy Barnett, C.M.C. 24 
City Clerk 25 
 26 


